
PLANNING COMMISSION 

 

AGENDA 

May 25, 2010 



Page 1 of 1 

CITY OF OAK HARBOR       AGENDA 
PLANNING COMMISSION May 25, 2010 
REGULAR MEETING   7:30 P.M. 
CITY HALL – COUNCIL CHAMBERS 
 
 
ROLL CALL: WIGGINS_____    JENSEN_____   NEIL     
 

FAKKEMA     FEY      WASINGER   
    
   DALE    
 
 
 
1. Approval of Minutes – April 27, 2010 
 
2. Public Comment – Planning Commission will accept public comment for items not 

otherwise on the agenda for the first 15 minutes of the Planning Commission meeting.  
 

3. LOW IMPACT DEVELOPMENT (LID) CODE UPDATE PROJECT– Public Meeting  
(NO ACTION REQUIRED) 
This is a continued discussion of the LID code update.  The discussion at this meeting 
will be about the LID practices of streets, native vegetation areas, open space in 
Planned Residential Developments, and grading. The Planning Commission will not be 
taking any action at this time.  

 
4. URBAN GROWTH AREA (UGA) CAPACITY ANALYSIS – Public Meeting 

(NO ACTION REQUIRED) 
This is a continued discussion on the UGA capacity analysis.  Staff will provide 
additional data on the land use distribution of the various land use categories in the City 
and the unincorporated UGA.  The Planning Commission will not be taking any action at 
this time. 

 



MINUTES 

 

April 27, 2010 



Planning Commission  
April 27, 2010 

Page 1 of 8 
 

PLANNING COMMISSION       
REGULAR MEETING 
April 27, 2010 
 
ROLL CALL: Present:  Bruce Neil, Julie Dale, Keith Fakkema, Kristi Jensen, Nancy Fey 

and Greg Wasinger. 
  Absent:  Mark Wiggins.  
  Staff Present:  Senior Planners, Ethan Spoo and Cac Kamak and Associate 

Planner, Melissa Sartorius. 
 
Vice Chairman Neil called the meeting to order at 7:35 p.m. 
 
MINUTES: MS. JENSEN MOVED, MS. DALE SECONDED, MOTION CARRIED TO 

APPROVE THE MARCH 23, 2010 MINUTES AS PRESENTED. 
 
PUBLIC COMMENT  
Marianne Edain (Whidbey Environmental Action Network) asked what the current water 
availability and restrictions are regarding the Skagit River.  Mr. Powers stated that the contract 
for obtaining water through the City of Anacortes to provide adequate water supply runs for 20 
years and the City is not experiencing any conservations efforts at this time.  Staff will look 
further into this issue and report back to the Planning Commission. 
 
URBAN GROWTH AREA (UGA) CAPACITY ANALYSIS – Public Meeting (no action required) 
Staff provided initial findings and data related to land use percentages in the City of Oak Harbor 
and in the surrounding UGA. 
 
Mr. Kamak reported that on March 2, 2010 the City Council approved the 2010 Comprehensive 
Plan Amendment Docket which includes performing a capacity analysis for the current Urban 
Growth Area (UGA).  The scope of this year’s analysis is to determine capacity and will not 
include any recommendations or proposals to change the UGA. 
 
As part of the UGA capacity analysis, staff has gathered population, permits, and land use 
distribution data. The discussion will also include a methodology to determine potentially 
developable land in the UGA. 
 
The graphs, charts, maps etc. are generated from data obtained from the State Office of 
Financial Management (OFM), Island County Assessors Office and the City of Oak Harbor 
Development Services Department.  Some of this information may not directly reflect the real 
conditions of the property and will therefore need to be identified and amended as the analysis 
progresses. 
   
This meeting is intended to share data that staff has gathered with the Planning Commission.  
No actions or recommendations are requested.   
 
Mr. Kamak displayed a Power Point presentation attached to these minutes as Attachment 1. 



Planning Commission  
April 27, 2010 

Page 2 of 8 
 

Mr. Kamak reported that the data presentation includes the following information: 
 

• Population – Historical trends and 20 year projection 
• Building Permits – Development – Residential/ Commercial 
• Existing Land Use Distribution 
• Methodology in determining land available for development 
• Maps based on Development Ratios 

 
The population data shows that it is very hard to predict population trends.  Historically, 
population growth as a percentage is:  

• 67% in unincorporated Island County 
• 33% incorporated (Langley 5%, Coupeville 7% and Oak Harbor 88%) 
• 29% City of Oak Harbor. 

 
Population projections from the OFM are shown below.  The decision as to whether to plan for 
the low, medium or high population projection is left up to the Cities and Counties.  In 2005 
Island County and the City of Oak Harbor agreed to choose somewhere between medium and 
high. 

20 yr Population Projection

9,73534,25124,516Medium-High
11,80837,43625,672High
7,66331,06723,404Medium
3,51724,69821,180Low

OAK HARBOR
33,571118,10784,537Medium - High
40,718129,08888,370High
26,423107,12680,703Medium
12,12885,16473,036Low

ISLAND COUNTY
Difference2030 Population2010 Population

28.9%

 
Mr. Kamak noted the building permit data from the City of Oak Harbor from 1973 – 2009 doesn’t 
follow any kind of trend. 
 
UGA land use distribution is between three areas: 

• City – 45% 
• Seaplane Base (not incorporated into the analysis because the City doesn’t assign land 

uses in the Seaplane Base) – 38% 
• Unincorporated UGA – 17% 

 



Planning Commission  
April 27, 2010 

Page 3 of 8 
 

Land use distribution within the City limits and in the unincorporated UGA is mostly low density 
residential.  
 
Mr. Kamak explained Developable vs. Undevelopable Methodology as follows: 

• Determine/agree on population to accommodate (projections) 
• Determine area within the City and the UGA 
• Determine undevelopable properties 

– ROW 
– Schools 
– Public Facilities 
– Parks and Open Spaces 
– Utilities, detention basins, buffers, tracts etc. 
– State and County owned properties 
– Not for profit organizations 
– Religious institutions 
– Well sites 
– Etc. 

• Determine properties that have a potential for development and redevelopment 
• Determine the amount of land available in each land use category 
• Determine development capacity for each land use based on Comprehensive Plan 

densities and historical trends or other assumptions 
• Determine if it can accommodate the 20 year population projection 

 
Mr. Kamak indicated that determining developable and undevelopable properties is an evolving 
science and numerous variables and market forces cannot be accurately predicted.  Ordinances 
also provide various degrees of flexibility.  Community character also plays a role. 

 
Mr. Kamak explained that the criteria for the methodology to determine developability should 
encompass the following: 

• Simple and logical 
• Relies on data that is available 
• Data can be obtained readily 
• Can be repeated in the future for comparison 
• Can be tracked over time 

 
Mr. Kamak explained some of the methodologies as follows: 

• ILR – Improvement value to Land Value Ratio 
– Based on assessed values 
– Uses a ratio between the land and the structure 
– Does not take into account any other feature of the property 

• Density Ratio 
– Not based on assessed values 
– Uses a ratio between existing density and potential density 
– Requires creating a database of information not currently tracked  

• Developability Ratio 
– Based on assessed values 
– Compares either the structure value or the land value against the total assessed 

value 
– Focuses on one aspect of the value 

 



Planning Commission  
April 27, 2010 

Page 4 of 8 
 

Mr. Kamak noted that since Oak Harbor isn’t a high density area it makes more sense to 
compare land values in terms of redevelopment so the Development Ratio method appears to fit 
the best for now.  Examples are shown below: 
 
Using Developability Ratio 

• Data available from the County and updated regularly 
• Total Assessed Value to Land Value Ratio 

– Example 1 
• Total Assessed Value is $400,000 
• Land Value is $300,000 
• Structure and special features is $100,000 
• Land Developability ratio = $300,000/$400,000 = 75% 

– Example 2 
• Total Assessed Value is $300,000 
• Land Value is $100,000 
• Developability ratio = 33% 

Assumptions are: 
• Higher numbers indicate a higher probability of development 
• Assumes that if the land value is a significant portion of the total assessed value then it 

has a potential for redevelopment 
• If the Developability Ratio is 100% the assumption is that there are no structures or 

development on the property 
 
Mr. Kamak indicated that it’s a community choice on where to draw the line for developability.  
This will be the discussion over the couple of months.  One of the complications is whether a 
property will develop within the 20 year period. 

– For Example 
– Choosing to consider properties that have a developability ratio of 50% or less 

will include more properties many of which may be unrealistic for redevelopment 
– Choosing to consider properties that have a developability ratio of 90% will 

reduce the number of properties and may not include potentially redevelopable 
properties 

 
Mr. Kamak displayed maps generated using the assessed values obtained from the Island 
County Assessors office.  The maps give an idea of what the 50%, 60%, 70%, 80% and 90% 
developability ratios show.  The maps are attached to these minutes as Attachment 3.  The 
greener the color is the higher the developability ratio and the brown areas indicate the lower 
percentage of developability.  
 
Mr. Kamak reiterated that the development ratios are not a goal that we are trying to achieve but 
are tools to try and determine realistically what properties may develop within the next 20 years 
using existing data. 
 
Planning Commission Discussion 
Ms. Jensen pointed out that the assessments don’t reflect rents received.  Sometimes the 
assessment shows a low building value due to age and depreciation yet there is high value due 
to rents.  This land may show as developable using the developability ratio but it is not worth it 
to the owner to tearing down the building and rebuild because rents received are high. 
 



Planning Commission  
April 27, 2010 

Page 5 of 8 
 

Mr. Kamak indicated that this is the type of real world knowledge that will need to be worked 
through and applied throughout this process. 
 
Ms. Fey added that historical value of structures will also need to be taken into account. 
 
Mr. Fakkema asked about the advantage to a city in keeping development confined to the city 
instead of spreading out its borders.  Mr. Kamak said that urban development needs to be 
where services can be provided.  It is better to provide development opportunities where you 
already have water and sewer available. 
 
Mr. Neil opened the meeting for public comment. 
 
Al Lentz (1875 Ft. Nugent Road) expressed concern about the City’s ecological impact on the 
rural areas and how this information may be used to spread the UGA.  Mr. Lentz also stated that 
he didn’t hear anything about public input in the presentation.  Mr. Powers stated that this 
meeting is the beginning stage of presenting materials to the Commission and also the 
beginning of the public input process.  These discussions will continue into May and June and 
there will be opportunity for public input during those discussions as well. 
 
GayLynn Beighton (2507 West Beach Road) provided a copy of her career resume and read 
prepared comments and underlined portions of Western Washington Growth Management 
Hearings Board Final Decision and Order, Case Number 08-2-0007c August 15, 2008 attached 
to these minutes as Attachment 2.   
 
Steve Erickson (Whidbey Environmental Action Network, PO Box 53, Langley, WA 98260) 
commented that there is a problem with looking at historical trends and continuing them into the 
future.  Oak Harbor is becoming less dense and this has been a trend for close to 20 years 
therefore thwarting the basic premise of the GMA.   
 
Mr. Erickson stated that he didn’t have a preference as to the method used.  The problem he 
has is that they are meant to be used as a predictive tool but they haven’t been validated.  Mr. 
Erickson suggested that staff take the three methodologies and take a sample of properties in 
the various classes that have and haven’t been developed over time and do a post-hoc analysis 
(looking back in time) to see if the methods explain what has happened. 
 
Mr. Erickson had the following questions: 
 

1) What was date of OFM forecast that was used? 
2) Is chart on page 14 a percent of change in population in unincorporated areas versus 

Oak Harbor looking at the relative change in population distribution between the 
unincorporated areas and Oak Harbor? 

3) Pages 15 & 16 historical population growth percentages; he doesn’t really understand 
what that is showing unless that is just another way of showing the distribution whether 
in a given year what percentage of the population growth was in the City and what 
percentage was outside the urban areas. 

4) Building permit on page 21 does this show only building permits in that year? 
5) Page 22 dwelling units to population 1973-2009 does that just show building permits or 

dwelling units in a given year? 
6) Are the units of measure acres for the charts on page 24, 25 and 26? 

 



Planning Commission  
April 27, 2010 

Page 6 of 8 
 

 
 
 
Marianne Edain (Whidbey Environmental Action Network) clarified her earlier question about 
water availability to the City from the Skagit River.  She noted the February press release from 
the City announced that there was a problem with water due to the low snow pack.  She pointed 
out that water is one of the basic necessities of life and that perhaps Oak Harbor needs to look 
at its intended future population projections to see if it can sustain a medium or high population 
projection.   She commented that she was a little disturbed by the term “or other assumptions” 
used on page 31, second to the last bullet point.  She wanted to know what those other 
assumptions are.  Everything needs to be spelled out clearly. 
 
Ms. Edain pointed out the statement from staff that the Planning staff plans to rely on existing 
data and not generate new data.  She believed that was a serious problem.    
 
Ms. Edain also asked about what the provisions are for accessory dwelling units on fairly large 
parcels in the City and how often are those provisions used and how many accessory dwellings 
can we expect on larger lots which would increase density without requiring further subdivision.  
She thought the City needs to focus on existing densities and how those densities are going to 
be increased in the City limits. 
 
Scott Ashworth (2438 Juan De Fuca Road) stated that he was part of the Swan Lake 
Preservation group and he and his family own 76 acres around Swan Lake so they have a 
strong interest in keeping that area in its natural state and to preserve farmland.  He thought 
that if the City were to decide not to grow at this time that property values within the City limits 
would be more valuable and if he were an Oak Harbor land holder and resident he would be 
pleased with that kind of decision. 
 
Jerry Pitsch (2527 West Beach Road) stated that Swan Lake is in his front yard and Juan De 
Fuca is in his back yard.  He asked if the Planned Industrial Park and Planned Business Park 
listed in the table on page 29 showed the number of parcels.  Mr. Powers indicated the number 
referred to the number of parcels.  Mr. Pitt stated that he had done some research and found 
that between 2004 and 2007 there were 18 contractors that build 42 assisted living units, an 80 
room hotel, 46 condo units, 29 unit apartments, 530 single-family lots with homes and 344 
single-family units.  From 2000 to 2010 the population of Oak Harbor only increased 385.  He 
surmised that there must be many of empty units.  He had doubts about the City’s population 
projection from 2010 to 2030 of 24, 006 which is a difference of 3,500, a 10-fold increase.  He 
believed that the population projection is lower than the low population projection on page 18.  
 
Jerry Homola (2362 Happy Lane) asked if the Planned Industrial area was included in the 
current UGA expansion area on Goldie Road or is it within the current UGA?  Mr. Powers stated 
that the analysis that staff will be presenting this year is only focused inside the original UGA 
adopted by the City and the County in 1995.  The City is not looking at the proposed expansion 
that the City put forth to the County in 2005 since that has not officially been acted upon.  The 
analysis is only inside of what might be referred to as the original UGA. 
 
Mr. Homola asked if the Seaplane Base is included in the UGA acreage and population. 
 
Mr. Homola noted that the 2010 census is taking place and in 2012 there will be current 
population numbers.  Mr. Homola believed that the City is using outdated numbers. 



Planning Commission  
April 27, 2010 

Page 7 of 8 
 

Mr. Homola asked if the Planning Commission had read the 2005 UGA expansion proposal and 
the follow-on appeals.  He stated that those materials should be reviewed as we move into the 
next stage. 
 
Mr. Homola encouraged everyone to read as much as they can about community.  He 
challenged anyone to find where urban sprawl is good for community.  Mr. Homola also noted 
that there is a great opportunity to focus on mixed use land development which will improve the 
community.  He believed that the City’s recent decision to make Pioneer Way one-way was a 
move in the right direction to improve downtown. 
 
Mr. Powers thanked the community members in attendance for their time spent on reviewing the 
information for the feedback they provided.   
 
Mr. Powers and Mr. Kamak summarized some of the questions that were asked and provided 
the following responses to the questions: 
 

• Pollution and ecological values – This is part of the decision making process that will 
come in succeeding years as we talk about what this information tells us and should we 
then talk about a change in the UGA or not, and if that is the direction the community 
goes, where should those changes take place and how does the ecological value come 
into that particular area.   

 
• Mr. Erickson’s questions: 

o Charts on pages 21 and 22 reflect the actual number of units per building permits 
for the year. 

o Population numbers – These numbers are obtained from the OFM which is 
updated by April 1st of every year and the data is provided by June of every year.  
We are using the data that was provided in 2009.  The federal census of 2000 
adjusted the 1998/1999 projections and we expect that the projections will 
change when the 2010 census data becomes available in a couple of years.   

 
• Ms. Edain’s question: 

o Water conservation issues – We are not currently under a request for 
conservation measures from the City of Anacortes.  Staff appreciates focusing on 
resources those are truly important. 

o Accessory Dwelling Unit provisions – The City has provisions for accessory 
dwelling units unfortunately there have only been one or two individuals take 
advantage of those provisions.  It is an area that staff would like to see used 
more.  As part of the subdivision code update the City made it easier for short 
plats and infill development to occur by lessening some of the public 
infrastructure requirements, namely streets, to allow lots to be on either private 
drives or private access ways. 

o New data versus old data or creating new data sources – This is a staff resource 
issue for the City.  We appreciate that input about what the right format for us to 
accomplish this project but on the other hand we have the obligation to balance 
our ability to tackle a certain sized project. 

 
• Mr. Pitschs’ question about Planned Industrial Park parcels - There are 11 Planned 

Industrial Park parcels and 3 Planned Business Park parcels for a total of 78 acres. 
 



Planning Commission  
April 27, 2010 

Page 8 of 8 
 

• Mr. Homola’s questions: 
o Seaplane Base – the Seaplane base is in the city limits and within the UGA.  A 

portion of that is included in the OFM projections.  The number comes from Navy 
Housing to the OFM which becomes the estimate that is provided to the City. The 
City is also working with the Navy to get information on the population that 
resides on base and staff will make some adjustments as we go through the 
process to try and see what Oak Harbor should plan for not including the Navy 
population.  If we are to subtract the number residing on base from the number 
that we get from OFM we need to be sure that OFM’s number included the 
Navy’s number in the first place. 

o 2010 Census and when that information becomes available and how does that 
tie into this particular project – In a perfect world all the timelines would line up 
better but the City has the Comprehensive Plan that directs that the City look at 
the capacity of our urban growth area once every five years which means looking 
at all land use categories and not just residential land uses.  Hopefully the 2010 
census information is available in late 2011 early 2012 which will line up with the 
State’s GMA mandate for a major review and update in 2012. 

o Comments about cultural shifts and changes in economies and communities – 
These are things that we will be looking to the community, Planning Commission 
and Council for guidance on.  That is more of the art of this and as one speaker 
cautioned on not only relying on the science so much but bring in the human side 
to the discussion which is part of the community values that we are looking for. 

 
Mr. Kamak elaborated on the public input process stating that there is a blog site for the 
Comprehensive Plan amendments and the advertisements are posted on the link and the public 
can post comments to the blog site as well.  There will also be public input opportunities in 
August and September during open houses or Planning Commission meetings.  All Planning 
Commission meetings are open to the public.  Mr. Kamak noted that this is the first phase and 
there will be a couple of more years of work in terms of defining numbers and figuring out what 
they mean and what kind of policy changes need to be made to reflect the direction the 
community wants to go. 
 
LOW IMPACT DEVELOPMENT (LID) CODE UPDATE PROJECT– Public Meeting 
(no action required) 
Planning Commission decided to shift the LID discussion to next month.   
 
 
BEING NO FURTHER BUSINESS BEFORE THE PLANNING COMMISSION, THE MEETING 
WAS ADJOURNED AT 9:30 P.M. 
 



1

UGA Capacity Analysis

Data Collection and findings

April 27, 2010 discussion

• Population – Historical trends and 20 year 
projection

• Building Permits – Development –
Residential/ Commercial

• Existing Land Use Distribution
• Methodology in determining land available 

for development
• Maps based on Development Ratios

Population

Projections and Historical Trends

Historical Population Trend

0

10,000

20,000

30,000

40,000

50,000

60,000

70,000

80,000

90,000

19
68

19
70

19
72

19
74

19
76

19
78

19
80

19
82

19
84

19
86

19
88

19
90

19
92

19
94

19
96

19
98

20
00

20
02

20
04

20
06

20
08

Island County Unincorporated Island County Oak Harbor

ATTACHMENT 1



2

Historical Population Growth
Annual increase in population 

-1000

-500

0

500

1000

1500

2000

2500

3000

3500

19
71

19
73

19
75

19
77

19
79

19
81

19
83

19
85

19
87

19
89

19
91

19
93

19
95

19
97

19
99

20
01

20
03

20
05

20
07

20
09

Unincorporated Island County Oak Harbor

Data Source: Washington State Office of Financial Management

% Annual change in Population 
Unincorporated areas vs. Oak Harbor

-80

-60

-40

-20

0

20

40

60

80

100

120

140

160

180

200

19
70

19
72

19
74

19
76

19
78

19
80

19
82

19
84

19
86

19
88

19
90

19
92

19
94

19
96

19
98

20
00

20
02

20
04

20
06

20
08

Unincorporated Island County Oak Harbor

Data Source: Washington State Office of Financial Management

Historical Population Growth Percentages

0

10

20

30

40

50

60

70

80

19
70

19
72

19
74

19
76

19
78

19
80

19
82

19
84

19
86

19
88

19
90

19
92

19
94

19
96

19
98

20
00

20
02

20
04

20
06

20
08

Unincorporated Island County Incorporated Areas Oak Harbor

Unincorporated - Average growth per

Incorporated - Average growth perc

Oak Harbor - Average growth percen

Data Source: Washington State Office of Financial Management

Population Growth Percentages
For County and Cities (Average based on historical trends)

Unincorporated
67%

Incorporated
33%

Unincorporated Incorporated

Coupeville
7%

Langley
5%

Oak Harbor
88%

Coupeville Langley Oak Harbor

Data Source: Washington State Office of Financial Management

ATTACHMENT 1



3

85,164

73,036

80,703

107,126

88,370

129,088

84,537

118,107

60,000

70,000

80,000

90,000

100,000

110,000

120,000

130,000

140,000

20
10

20
11

20
12

20
13

20
14

20
15

20
16

20
17

20
18

20
19

20
20

20
21

20
22

20
23

20
24

20
25

20
26

20
27

20
28

20
29

20
30

Low Medium High Medium - High

Island County Population Projections

Data Source: Washington State Office of Financial Management

21180

24698

31067

23404

37436

25627

33780

24516

20000

22000

24000

26000

28000

30000

32000

34000

36000

38000

40000

20
10

20
11

20
12

20
13

20
14

20
15

20
16

20
17

20
18

20
19

20
20

20
21

20
22

20
23

20
24

20
25

20
26

20
27

20
28

20
29

20
30

Low Medium High Medium - High

Oak Harbor Population Projections

Data Source: Washington State Office of Financial Management

20 yr Population Projection

9,73534,25124,516Medium-High
11,80837,43625,672High
7,66331,06723,404Medium
3,51724,69821,180Low

OAK HARBOR
33,571118,10784,537Medium - High
40,718129,08888,370High
26,423107,12680,703Medium
12,12885,16473,036Low

ISLAND COUNTY
Difference2030 Population2010 Population

28.9%

Data Source: Washington State Office of Financial Management

Medium-High was calculated as an average between the High and Medium population

Building Permits

Development Trends, Housing, 
Building Permits etc. 

ATTACHMENT 1



4

Dwelling Units 1973-2009
Oak Harbor

0

50

100

150

200

250

19
73

19
75

19
77

19
79

19
81

19
83

19
85

19
87

19
89

19
91

19
93

19
95

19
97

19
99

20
01

20
03

20
05

20
07

20
09

Single Family Duplex Units Triplex units Fourplex units Apartments

Data Source: Oak Harbor Development Services Department Building Permits for new construction

Dwelling Units to Population 1973-2009

-600

-400

-200

0

200

400

600

800

1000

1200

1400

19
73

19
75

19
77

19
79

19
81

19
83

19
85

19
87

19
89

19
91

19
93

19
95

19
97

19
99

20
01

20
03

20
05

20
07

20
09

Oak Harbor Population growth Total # of Units
Data Source: Oak Harbor Development Services Department Building Permits for new construction

Land Use Distribution

Percentage of land use categories 
within City limits and 
unincorporated UGA

City and UGA Areas

Seaplane Base, 2770, 
38%

City, 3312, 45%

Unincorporated UGA, 
1265, 17%

Seaplane Base City Unincorporated UGA

Data Source: Oak Harbor Development Services Department 

ATTACHMENT 1



5

Land Use Distribution – City Limits

0

500

1000

1500

2000

2500

3000

3500

4000

4500

# of Parcels Acreage

Low Density Residential

Medium Density Residential

Medium-High Density Residential

High Density Residential

Residential Office

Neighborhood Commercial

Central Business District

Community Commercial

Auto Industrial Commercial

Highway Corridor Commercial

Planned Industrial Park

Planned Business Park

Industrial

Public Facilities

Residential Estate

Open Space

Data Source: Oak Harbor Development Services Department 

Land Use Distribution – Unincorporated UGA

0

100

200

300

400

500

600

700

800

900

# of Parcels Acreage

Low Density Residential

Medium Density Residential

Medium-High Density Residential

High Density Residential

Residential Office

Neighborhood Commercial

Central Business District

Community Commercial

Auto Industrial Commercial

Highway Corridor Commercial

Planned Industrial Park

Planned Business Park

Industrial

Public Facilities

Residential Estate

Open Space

Data Source: Oak Harbor Development Services Department 

Land Use Distribution in City Limits
Percentage parcels vs. acreage

% of Total Parcels % of Total Acreage

Low Density Residential

Medium Density Residential

Medium-High Density Residential

High Density Residential

Residential Office

Neighborhood Commercial

Central Business District

Community Commercial

Auto Industrial Commercial

Highway Corridor Commercial

Planned Industrial Park

Planned Business Park

Industrial

Public Facilities

Residential Estate

Open Space

Data Source: Oak Harbor Development Services Department 

Land Use Distribution in unincorporated UGA
Percentage parcels vs. acreage

% of Total Parcels % of Total Acreage

Low Density Residential

Medium Density Residential

Medium-High Density Residential

High Density Residential

Residential Office

Neighborhood Commercial

Central Business District

Community Commercial

Auto Industrial Commercial

Highway Corridor Commercial

Planned Industrial Park

Planned Business Park

Industrial

Public Facilities

Residential Estate

Open Space

Data Source: Oak Harbor Development Services Department 

ATTACHMENT 1



6

Land Use Distribution in City Limits and 
Unincorporated UGA

1001001127103710010027645818TOTALS

515698021412Open Space

6370310000Residential Estate

2018313135861Public Facilities

13314834102010Industrial

51551030783Planned Business Park

23726377206711Planned Industrial Park

0000317545Highway Corridor Commercial

2226174010525Auto Industrial Commercial

54583863154203Community Commercial

00001241144Central Business District

000000712Neighborhood Commercial

00003394187Residential Office

000053150180High Density Residential

0000328489Medium-High Density Residential

1063713201752Medium Density Residential

3879427815407011164084Low Density Residential

% of 
Total 

Acreage

% of Total 
Parcels

Acreage# of 
Parcels

% of Total 
Acreage

% of Total 
Parcels

Acreage# of 
Parcels

Land Use Category

UNINCORPORATED UGACity Limits

Data Source: Oak Harbor Development Services Department 

Developable vs. Undevelopable

Methodology, data source, GIS 
queries etc.

Methodology
• Determine/agree on population to accommodate (projections)
• Determine area within the City and the UGA
• Determine undevelopable properties

– ROW
– Schools
– Public Facilities
– Parks and Open Spaces
– Utilities, detention basins, buffers, tracts etc.
– State and County owned properties
– Not for profit organizations
– Religious institutions
– Well sites
– Etc.

• Determine properties that have a potential for development and 
redevelopment*

• Determine the amount of land available in each land use category
• Determine development capacity for each land use based on 

Comprehensive Plan densities and historical trends or other assumptions
• Determine if it can accommodate the 20 year population projection

Determining Developable and 
Undevelopable Properties

• A evolving science
• Numerous variables
• Market forces cannot be accurately 

predicted
• Ordinances providing various degrees of 

flexibility
• Proposed development vs. development 

potential
• Community character

ATTACHMENT 1



7

Criteria for the Methodology to 
determine Developability

• Simple and logical
• Relies on data that is available
• Data can be obtained readily
• Can be repeated in the future for 

comparison
• Can be tracked over time

Some Methodologies
• ILR – Improvement value to Land Value Ratio

– Based on assessed values
– Uses a ratio between the land and the structure
– Does not take into account any other feature of the property

• Density Ratio
– Not based on assessed values
– Uses a ratio between existing density and potential density
– Requires creating a database of information not currently tracked 

• Developability Ratio
– Based on assessed values
– Compares either the structure value or the land value against the 

total assessed value
– Focuses on one aspect of the value

Using Developability Ratio
• Data available from the County and updated regularly
• Total Assessed Value to Land Value Ratio

– Example 1
• Total Assessed Value is $400,000
• Land Value is $300,000
• Structure and special features is $100,000
• Land Developability ratio = $300,000/$400,000 = 75%

– Example 2
• Total Assessed Value is $300,000
• Land Value is $100,000
• Developability ratio = 33%

• Higher numbers indicate a higher probability of 
development

• Assumes that if the land value is a significant portion of 
the total assessed value then it has a potential for 
redevelopment

• If the Developability Ratio is 100% the assumption is that 
there are no structures or development on the property

Drawing the Development Line
• Capacity is based on determining the amount of 

land available for development
• 20 year period (RCW 36.70A.110 (2))
• It’s a community choice on where to draw the 

line for Developability
– For Example
– Choosing to consider properties that have a 

developability ratio of 50% or less will include more 
properties many of which may be unrealistic for 
redevelopment

– Choosing to consider properties that have a 
developability ratio of 90% will reduce the number of 
properties and may not include potentially 
redevelopable properties

ATTACHMENT 1



8

Maps

• Maps generated using the assessed values 
obtained from the Island County Assessors 
office
– City and unincorporated UGA – range of 

Developability ratio
– 50% + Developability Ratio
– 60% + Developability Ratio
– 70% + Developability Ratio
– 80% + Developability Ratio
– 90% + Developability Ratio

Next Meeting

• Developable and undevelopable property 
by Land Use category in each of the 
Developability Ratios within the City and 
the unincorporated UGA

ATTACHMENT 1

















ÜDisclaimer:
This map is created using assessed value data supplied by the Island County
Assessor's Office in November, 2009.  The map indicates preliminary
information based on the data and is subject to change based on further
research and other findings as the UGA capacity analysis progresses.

Neither the City of Oak Harbor nor any agency, officer, or employee of the City
of Oak Harbor warrants the accuracy, reliability or timeliness of any information
contained on mapping products originating fiom the City of Oak Harbor and
shall not be held liable for any losses caused by such reliance on the accuracy,
reliability or timeliness of such information. Any person or entity who relies on
any information obtained fiom the systems, does so at his or her own risk.

Legend
CityLimits

UGA - County Adopted

Development Ratio
0 - 10

11 - 20

21 - 30

31 - 40

41 - 50

51 - 60

61 - 70

71 - 80

81 - 90

91 - 100

DEVELOPMENT RATIO RANGE

UGA - City Adopted
(Not included in study area)

ATTACHMENT 3



Ü
Disclaimer:
This map is created using assessed value data supplied by the Island County Assessor's Office in
November, 2009.  The map indicates preliminary information based on the data and is subject to
change based on further research and other findings as the UGA capacity analysis progresses.

Neither the City of Oak Harbor nor any agency, officer, or employee of the City of Oak Harbor warrants
the accuracy, reliability or timeliness of any information contained on mapping products originating fiom
the City of Oak Harbor and shall not be held liable for any losses caused by such reliance on the
accuracy, reliability or timeliness of such information. Any person or entity who relies on any
information obtained fiom the systems, does so at his or her own risk.

50%+ DEVELOPABILITY RATIO

Legend
CityLimits

Developability

UGA - City Adopted
(Not included in study area)

UGA - County Adopted

Properties with 50%+ Development Ratio

Properties with <50% Development Ratio

ATTACHMENT 3



Ü

60%+ DEVELOPABILITY RATIO

Disclaimer:
This map is created using assessed value data supplied by the Island County Assessor's Office in
November, 2009.  The map indicates preliminary information based on the data and is subject to
change based on further research and other findings as the UGA capacity analysis progresses.

Neither the City of Oak Harbor nor any agency, officer, or employee of the City of Oak Harbor warrants
the accuracy, reliability or timeliness of any information contained on mapping products originating fiom
the City of Oak Harbor and shall not be held liable for any losses caused by such reliance on the
accuracy, reliability or timeliness of such information. Any person or entity who relies on any
information obtained fiom the systems, does so at his or her own risk.

Legend
CityLimits

Developability

UGA - City Adopted
(Not included in study area)

UGA - County Adopted

Properties with 60%+ Development Ratio

Properties with <60% Development Ratio

ATTACHMENT 3



Ü

70%+ DEVELOPABILITY RATIO

Disclaimer:
This map is created using assessed value data supplied by the Island County Assessor's Office in
November, 2009.  The map indicates preliminary information based on the data and is subject to
change based on further research and other findings as the UGA capacity analysis progresses.

Neither the City of Oak Harbor nor any agency, officer, or employee of the City of Oak Harbor warrants
the accuracy, reliability or timeliness of any information contained on mapping products originating fiom
the City of Oak Harbor and shall not be held liable for any losses caused by such reliance on the
accuracy, reliability or timeliness of such information. Any person or entity who relies on any
information obtained fiom the systems, does so at his or her own risk.

Legend
CityLimits

Developability

UGA - City Adopted
(Not included in study area)

UGA - County Adopted

Properties with 70%+ Development Ratio

Properties with <70% Development Ratio

ATTACHMENT 3



Ü

80%+ DEVELOPABILITY RATIO

Disclaimer:
This map is created using assessed value data supplied by the Island County Assessor's Office in
November, 2009.  The map indicates preliminary information based on the data and is subject to
change based on further research and other findings as the UGA capacity analysis progresses.

Neither the City of Oak Harbor nor any agency, officer, or employee of the City of Oak Harbor warrants
the accuracy, reliability or timeliness of any information contained on mapping products originating fiom
the City of Oak Harbor and shall not be held liable for any losses caused by such reliance on the
accuracy, reliability or timeliness of such information. Any person or entity who relies on any
information obtained fiom the systems, does so at his or her own risk.

Legend
CityLimits

Developability

UGA - City Adopted
(Not included in study area)

UGA - County Adopted

Properties with 80%+ Development Ratio

Properties with <80% Development Ratio

ATTACHMENT 3



Ü

90%+ DEVELOPABILITY RATIO

Disclaimer:
This map is created using assessed value data supplied by the Island County Assessor's Office in
November, 2009.  The map indicates preliminary information based on the data and is subject to
change based on further research and other findings as the UGA capacity analysis progresses.

Neither the City of Oak Harbor nor any agency, officer, or employee of the City of Oak Harbor warrants
the accuracy, reliability or timeliness of any information contained on mapping products originating fiom
the City of Oak Harbor and shall not be held liable for any losses caused by such reliance on the
accuracy, reliability or timeliness of such information. Any person or entity who relies on any
information obtained fiom the systems, does so at his or her own risk.

Legend
CityLimits

Developability

UGA - City Adopted
(Not included in study area)

UGA - County Adopted

Properties with 90%+ Development Ratio

Properties with <90% Development Ratio

ATTACHMENT 3



Low Impact Development 
Code 

Project Update 

 



 Page 1 

Memo 
To: City of Oak Harbor Planning Commission 

Cc: File 

From: Ethan Spoo, Senior Planner 

Date: 5/20/2010 

Re: LID – Policy questions for Native Vegetation Areas and Open Space in PRDs 

Since Commission did not have the opportunity to discuss the LID agenda item last month, staff will be 
covering April’s topics plus associated policy questions dealing with native vegetation areas and open 
space in PRDs at the May meeting. This memorandum presents those policy issues and questions. 

NATIVE VEGETATION AREAS 

Decision Tool 

Before we can answer the policy questions, we need to understand the relative costs and benefits of 
native vegetation areas.  

The cost side of the picture is fairly simple: native vegetation areas use land that could otherwise be 
developed for other purposes. Secondly, native vegetation areas need to be maintained. 

The benefits of native vegetation areas are, first and foremost, environmental. Native vegetation areas 
result in cleaner stormwater (cleaner Puget Sound), cleaner air, and provide a habitat for native plants 
and animals. They also provide incidental benefits in the form of increased property values for homes 
and buildings located next to native vegetation areas. The decision tool captures this discussion of 
costs and benefits. In short, the decision tool shows that the positive environmental benefits increase 
as we move from making native vegetation areas voluntary to mandatory, but so do the costs. 



 Page 2 

Policy Issue / Measure Description No Change Voluntary Incentive Mandatory

Native vegetation areas

Native vegetation areas would be 
made voluntary, encouraged through 
incentives, or made mandatory.

Environment The more native vegetation areas there 
are, the better it is for the environment.

No change. Developers are not likely to 
voluntarily provide native 
vegetation areas.

More native vegetation areas 
means positive impacts for 
water, air, habitat and human 
health.

Mandatory reductions in 
impervious are good for the 
environment

City costs City costs would only be affected if the 
City had to maintain native vegetation 
areas in emergency situations.

No change. No change. No change. No change.

Private costs Home owners are responsible for 
maintaining the native vegetation area.

No change. Property/home owner costs go 
up moderately for 
maintenance.

Property/home owner costs 
increase moderately for 
maintenance.

Property/home owner costs 
increase moderately to 
noticeably for maintenance.

Economy Native vegetation areas take at least some 
buildable land from developers, thereby 
reducing yield for vacant land, and 
filtering through to the economy.

No change. If voluntary, we assume no 
negative economic impact since 
it's a choice

If using incentives, we assume 
no negative economic impact, 
since it's still a choice and 
losses are partially offset by 
incentives.

If mandatory, with no 
incentive, we assume a 
moderate negative economic 
impact from loss of land, since 
some losses recovered by 
higher property values

expect large negative impacts
expect moderate negative impacts
expect small negative impacts
expect neutral impacts
expect small postive impacts
expect moderate positive impacts
expect large positive impacts

* = assumes LID capital costs are comparable to conventional systems.

SCENARIOS - LIKELY IMPACTS

 



 Page 3 

Policy Issues/Questions 

Staff requests Planning Commission’s input and assistance in answering the following policy questions 
related to native vegetation areas given the information provided in the April and May staff reports. 

1. Should native vegetation areas be voluntary, encouraged through incentives, or 
mandatory? Incentives may include increased densities, reduced application fees, 
flexibility in other zoning standards (setbacks, lot dimensional requirements, 
adjustments to parking requirements). 

o Staff recommendation: The Comprehensive Plan (Environmental Element 5d) 
requires that trees be retained and planted with new development. The City’s existing 
ordinance (chapter 19.46) requires 15 percent of the number of significant trees in 
new developments to be retained. Native vegetation areas work differently. Instead of 
focusing on the number of trees to be retained, native vegetation areas (as the name 
implies) set aside a specific area of the site for tree/vegetation retention. 

Staff recommends that the City adopt an incentive-based approach so that some of 
the benefits of native vegetation areas can be realized for those sites where it makes 
financial sense. Making native vegetation areas mandatory may have unintended 
consequences, such as tree blow down and unforeseen maintenance costs. 
Furthermore, staff has concerns that the uniform application of a native vegetation 
requirement for each zone may not be a supportable approach.1 The incentive-based 
approach will give the City the opportunity to measure and evaluate how native 
vegetation areas are functioning during the next few years and then reconsider a 
change in policy direction (voluntary, incentive, mandatory) at a later date. The type of 
incentive offered for native vegetation areas still needs to be discussed, but may 
include a reduction or waiver of the stormwater SDC (if such a fee is adopted and 
implemented in the future). 

2. Should already developed sites be required to replant a portion of the site as native 
vegetation to the minimum required percent whenever a development/building permit is 
filed? 

o Staff recommendation: Chapter 19.46 OHMC already requires landscape setbacks 
in all new development and that these setbacks be planted with trees. The draft LID 
code proposes that sites applying for permits (even if the site has previously been 
developed) be replanted to have a minimum area of the site as native vegetation. The 
way the code has been presented to the City by PSP, the replanting requirements 
would apply even if the only work being done on a site is through a building permit. 
Effectively, this would mean that if a homeowner was adding a room to their house, 
they would also have to replant their lot to the minimum specified percent of native 
vegetation, if this requirement were made mandatory. 

Staff’s recommendation is for the City to focus on protecting and maintaining existing 
native vegetation areas with new development, not in creating new areas with each 
permit that comes in for existing developments. Staff sees practical difficulties in terms 
of staff resources available to administer and monitor the creation of native vegetation 
areas in existing developments. 

                                                      
1 See Isla Verde International Holdings Inc. v. City of Camas, Supreme Court of Washington, No. 69475-3. 



 Page 4 

OPEN SPACE IN PRDS 

Decision Tool 

The costs and benefits of increasing the amount of open space required in PRDs to 20 percent as 
recommended by PSP are fairly straightforward. The primary benefits are: 

• Environmental - Reduced impervious surface from increased open space helps promote better 
stormwater quality, and may have positive impacts for air quality. 

• Recreational - More open space means more areas to recreate for children and citizens of all 
ages depending upon the type of open space proposed. 

• Higher property values for lots located in developments with more open space. 

• More open space means a better overall quality of life for Oak Harbor residents, which helps 
make our community a more attractive place to live. 

The main costs of increasing the amount of open space are: 

• Developers/applicants may be giving up otherwise buildable area resulting in less land for 
other uses (buildings, streets, driveways, parking, etc.). As a side note, developer’s total capital 
costs may be lower, however, since preserving open space is less expensive than 
constructing buildings and infrastructure. 

• Larger open spaces, whether kept as a native vegetation area or developed with recreational 
uses, require more maintenance and lead to higher costs for property owners and/or home 
owners associations than would be the case if only 10 percent open space is required. 

 



 Page 5 

Policy Issue / Measure Description No Change Voluntary Incentive Mandatory

Provide 20% Open 
Space in PRDs

The amount of open space in PRDs 
would be increased from 10% to 20%

Environment The more open space there is, the better it 
is for the environment since it reduces 
impervious surfaces.

No change. Developers are not likely to 
voluntarily provide more open 
space, therefore impacts are 
not likely to change in this case.

Depending on how strong the 
incentive is, there would likely 
be more open space leading to 
benefits for the environment. 
However, land is expensive, so 
the City is not likely to receive 
much more open space under 
an incentive system.

If 20% open space is made 
mandatory, then developers 
would have no choice. The 
amount of open space 
provided would about double 
from what is currently required, 
dramatically increasing the 
environmental benefits.

City costs PRD open space tends to be privately 
maintained, so the City is not likely to 
experience an increase in costs by 
increasing the requirement for open 
space.

No change. No change. No change. No change.

Private costs Private costs would increase in two 
aspects: (1) developers costs go up b/c 
they are losing developable land to open 
space (2) home owners costs go  up 
because they are required to maintain 
these open spaces.

No change. Since developers will not 
voluntarily provide more open 
space, private costs remain the 
same.

Depending on strength of 
incentive, more open space 
may be provided under an 
incentive system, slightly 
increasing and homeowner 
costs.

Developer and homeowner 
costs would increase 
moderately under this scenario. 
Developers would find ways to 
offset pass most costs onto 
home buyers, or reduce costs 
in other areas. Homeowners 
would pay higher maintenance 
costs.

Economy More open space has both a postive and 
negative effect on the economy. The 
positive effect is that more open space 
makes OH a more desireable place to live. 
The negative is that more open space 
takes buildable land for other uses.

No change. Since we assume that 
developers will not voluntarily 
provide more open space, there 
is no impact to the economy 
under this scenario.

Since we assume that 
developers would only choose 
to provide more open space if 
it were economically 
advantageous, there is a slight 
positive impact on the 
economy here.

Developers lose buildable land 
to open space. At the same 
time, more open space makes 
OH a more attractive place to 
live in the long-run. Net effect 
is a slight negative impact on 
local economy. 

expect large negative impacts
expect moderate negative impacts
expect small negative impacts
expect neutral impacts
expect small postive impacts
expect moderate positive impacts
expect large positive impacts

* = assumes LID capital costs are comparable to conventional systems.

SCENARIOS - LIKELY IMPACTS

 



 Page 6 

The summary of the decision tool is that: 

• In this case, there is no difference between having no change in the existing regulations 
(mandatory 10 percent open space in PRDs) and making 20 percent open space a voluntary 
choice, since developers/applicants are highly unlikely to voluntarily provide more open space 
than the minimum 10 percent that is required. 

• An incentive-based system (for example density bonuses) may result in some developers 
providing 20 percent open space at least some of the time, but probably only in those 
instances when it makes financial sense for them to do so (i.e., when there is an overlap with 
required critical area preservation). For this reason, we assume that there will be no net loss in 
buildable units under the incentive-based system for open space in PRDs. If developers lose 
units, they would not elect to provide the additional open space. Thus, in those cases when the 
developer chose to provide the additional open space, it would have a small positive impact on 
the quality of life in Oak Harbor, as well as on the economy. Homeowner’s fees would increase 
slightly to maintain that additional open space. 

• In the case that 20 percent open space is made mandatory, there are large positive increases 
in the environmental benefits as compared with the existing 10 precent open space 
requirement. Since the amount of open space provided would roughly double, homeowner’s 
costs to maintain this space would increase. Since at least some buildable land would become 
unbuildable open space (at the same time this open space would provide a higher quality of 
life for Oak Harbor residents), there would be a small negative impact on the economy if it is 
made mandatory in all PRDs. 

Policy Issues/Questions 

There are three basic policy questions which staff is requesting Planning Commission’s input on with 
regard to increasing open space in PRDs: 

1. Should the City increase the percent of open space in PRDs? 

o Staff recommendation: Staff recommends that the City increase the amount of open 
space in PRDs to positively impact stormwater quality, provide more recreational 
opportunities for residence, and help meet the City’s open space goals in the 
Comprehensive Plan. More specifically, Comprehensive Plan open space goals (i and 
r) say: 

 “Promote the conservation of open spaces that are in both public and private 
ownership” and 

 “Review and revise as necessary the City’s development regulations to 
ensure that adequate provisions are made to preserve open space as land is 
developed.” 

As density within the City increases, and more developments occur under the 
provisions of the PRD code, this reduces the amount of private yard space available 
on individual lots. The City has seen a recent trend in the past decade toward more 
PRDs with smaller average lot sizes. These trends toward smaller lots and higher 
density increase the demand and need for more common open space. 

2. If the City chooses to increase the amount of required open space in PRDs, should the 
increase be voluntary, encouraged through incentives or made mandatory? 

o Staff recommendation: Staff recommends that the open space requirement be 
made mandatory up to a certain percentage and then encourage additional open 
space provision through incentives above that percentage. A mandatory requirement 
is easy to administer and easy for developers to plan for and take into account in site 
design. The City’s existing open space provision in the PRD code is mandatory. 



 Page 7 

• If the City chooses to increase the amount of open space, what should it be increased 
to? The Puget Sound Partnership recommends that 20 percent of PRDs be required to 
be open space. Most jurisdictions in Washington fall in the range of 20-30 percent as a 
requirement for open space. 

o Staff recommendation: Applicants choose to submit PRDs. The applicant provides 
the open space, and in return the City grants flexibility in zone standards such as 
setbacks, lot, coverage, and lot size. Because the City grants flexibility in standards, it 
has the latitude to set the open space requirement. However, there is a practical limit. 
If the open space requirement is set too high, applicants will avoid submitting PRD 
applications and developers will not provide any private open space. Additionally, an 
open space requirement which is set too high may direct development to jurisdictions 
other than Oak Harbor. Staff, therefore, recommends that the open space 
requirement be set within the range of what is typical in Washington jurisdictions (20-
30 percent). Since Oak Harbor’s existing standard is 10 percent, staff recommends 
that the City set the standard no higher than 20 percent, which is a doubling of the 
existing requirement. Further, staff recommends that the density bonus in section 
19.31.090 for providing additional open space above and beyond the standard be 
retained. 



Urban Growth Area  

Capacity Analysis 



 

PLANNING COMMISSION 

TO: CITY OF OAK HARBOR PLANNING COMMISSIONERS 

FROM: CAC KAMAK, AICP, SENIOR PLANNER 

SUBJECT: 2010 COMPREHENSIVE PLAN AMENDMENTS - UGA CAPACITY ANALYSIS  
DATA COLLECTION – DENSITIES, METHODOLOGIES AND LAND USE 
DISTRIBUTION 

DATE: 5/24/2010 

CC: STEVE POWERS, AICP, DEVELOPMENT SERVICES DIRECTOR 
 

This is a continued discussion of the initial data gathered for the UGA capacity 
analysis.  At the last meeting information related to population, current land use 
distributions and methodologies to determine developable properties were presented.  
The May 25, 2010 meeting will continue the discussion on the methodologies and also 
present some initial queries of assessed valuation data.   

The presentation will also share information on density trends in Oak Harbor and as 
mentioned above will further discuss the three known methodologies that can be used to 
further analyze the available data.  Among the three methodologies discussed at the last 
meeting, the City does not have information to perform analysis using the Density Ratio 
methodology since information related to structures and their location on lots are not 
tracked electronically/digitally by the City.  However, the Improvement to Land Ratio 
method (ILR) and the Total Value to Land Ratio (TLR or Developability Ratio) uses 
valuations from the County Assessor’s office and have been used to provide some initial 
numbers on land uses that have potential development capacity.  The numbers provided 
are strictly based on currently available assessed values and will change as more 
deduction filters are applied to the data.  The deduction filters will be based on further 
analysis of the data and its relation to what is actually on the property. 

The Planning Commission is not expected to make any decisions or recommendations 
on May 25, 2010.  This is only and information sharing meeting. 

 



UGA Capacity Analysis

Data Collection and findings



May 25, 2010 discussion

• Densities
• Methodologies

– Density Ratio
– Improvement to Land Ratio (ILR)
– Land to Total Value Ratio



Year Area1 Area annexed Population2 Population 
increase

Population 
Density

1970 4165 3061 9,167 2.20

1980 4739 574 12,271 3,104 2.59

1990 4925 186 17,176 4,905 3.49

2000 5804 879 19,795 2,619 3.41

2009 6082 278 23,3603 3,565 3.84

1. Areas – Based on GIS data overlay on maps based on Island County Orthographic projections (aerials shot in 2007)
2. Population – US Census (population includes Navy housing population)
3.  Population estimate provided by OFM 

Population Densities



Year
Approximate number of 

units per acre

Pre 1940 3.8

1941-1950 3.7

1951-1960 3.3

1961-1970 4.5

1971-1980 3.6

1981-1990
Annexation included no 

residential areas

1991-2000 3.9

2001-2009 5.3

Residential Densities 
(within annexation areas)

Densities were calculated based on random sampling of 10 acre areas that 
typically represented development patterns during that decade.  Selected 
sample areas does not include open spaces, tracts or parks.  Rights of way 
are included.



Planned Residential Developments Year Units Zoning Total Acreage Density

Cherry Hills 2000 151 R-2 29.5 5.12

Spring Hollow 2000 32 R-3 4.03 7.94

Whidbey Links 2002 28 R-1 7.93 3.53

Woodbury Park 2004 37 R-3 6.06 6.11

Island Place 2005 105 R-2 19.45 5.40

Crosby Commons 2005 74 R-1 19.4 3.81

Whidbey Greens 2005 90 R-1 16.04 5.61

Harbor Place 2005 56 R-2 6.3 8.89

Rose Hill 2006 38 R-2 4.01 9.48

Fairway Point 2006 140 R-1 36 3.89

Highland Park 2006-7 25 R-1 4.75 5.26

Plats

East Park 2000 38 R-1 9.13 4.16

Redwing 2003 111 R-2 28.86 3.85

Barrington Heights 2006 23 R-1 7.6 3.03

Frostad Pond 2006 45 R-1 8.74 5.15

West Meadows 2007 61 R-1 15.4 3.96

Fireside
1994- 
2005 226 R-1 69.1 3.27

Average 5.20

Development Densities



Methodologies



Data Source

• Island County Assessor’s data
• Data used for valuation
• PIN – identifiers of properties that tracks 

property owners



Data Management
• Data provided in a spreadsheet or database for 

North Whidbey
• City matches County data with City maintained 

GIS map
– Properties always don’t match up – out of sync since 

they are maintained separately
– Time gaps betweens lots created and PINs inputted  

in County data
– A property may have multiple PINs or sometimes a 

single PIN can be assigned to multiple properties if 
still owned by the same person or entity.

• There is always some cleaning up of the data 



Data Correction

• Data gaps were filled only where County 
data did not link to City GIS maps
– Condominiums
– Tracts 

• Buffers
• Landscape or common areas
• Detention basins

– Schools
– Parks
– Religious institutions



Density Ratio

• Ratio of the existing density to the 
potential density

5000 Square feet 20, 000 Square feet

Existing Density Potential Density

Density Ratio =
Existing Density

Potential Density
=  0.25

Low ratios indicate higher development potentials



Density Ratio

• Typically used for smaller study areas
• Appropriate in areas that have a wide 

range of densities
• Areas of inconsistent lot areas with the 

same zoning designations
• Impacted by change in zoning and 

development regulations (setbacks, 
buffers, parking etc.)



Improvement to Land Ratio

• Ratio between the land and the improvements
• Assessed Land value = 300,000
• Assessed Improvement Value = 100,000

ILR  = 
Improvement value

Land  value
=  33%

•Typically this method considers land with ILR <50% as redevelopable

(The structure is 33% of 
land value)



Improvement to Land Ratio

• Uses existing assessed values
• Calculations can include tax exempt 

properties (non-profits, faith based 
organizations etc.) that may be 
undevelopable

• May not include special features that add 
value to the property and are not included 
in the structure or land assessment



Land to Total Value Ratio

• Ratio between total assessed value and 
land value

• Total Assessed Value is $400,000
• Land Value is $300,000
• Structure and special features is $100,000

LTR = Land Value

Total Assessed Value
=  75% Land value is 

75% of the total 
value

Higher percentages indicate higher redevelopment potential



Land to Total Value Ratio

• Uses existing assessed values
• Compares the value of land to the total 

assessed values.
• Includes special features
• Does not include tax exempt properties in 

the calculations
• Focuses primarily on the land value



Improvement to Land Ratio

Land to Total value Ratio

Improvement value

Land value

Developable

Land valueTotal value

Developable

Undevelopable

Undevelopable

Improvement value decreases

Land value increases



ILR and LTR 
Potentially developable acres

50% 40% 30% 20% 10%

ILR
City 728 704 666 632 549

Unincorporated UGA 574 572 558 528 503

Total 1302 1276 1225 1159 1052

50% 60% 70% 80% 90%

LTR
City 859 695 625 518 419

Unincorporated UGA 599 529 501 447 415

Total 1459 1224 1127 966 835



ÜDisclaimer:
This map is created using assessed value data supplied by the Island County
Assessor's Office in November, 2009.  The map indicates preliminary
information based on the data and is subject to change based on further
research and other findings as the UGA capacity analysis progresses.

Neither the City of Oak Harbor nor any agency, officer, or employee of the City
of Oak Harbor warrants the accuracy, reliability or timeliness of any information
contained on mapping products originating fiom the City of Oak Harbor and
shall not be held liable for any losses caused by such reliance on the accuracy,
reliability or timeliness of such information. Any person or entity who relies on
any information obtained fiom the systems, does so at his or her own risk.

Legend
CityLimits

UGA - County Adopted

RESIDENTIAL DENSITIES
(Within Annexation Areas)

UGA - City Adopted
(Not included in study area)

Annexation Date Classification
pre 1940
1940-1950
1950-1960
1960-1970
1970-1980
1980-1990
1990-2000
2000-2010

Sample - 10 acres



ÜDisclaimer:
This map is created using assessed value data supplied by the Island County
Assessor's Office in November, 2009.  The map indicates preliminary
information based on the data and is subject to change based on further
research and other findings as the UGA capacity analysis progresses.

Neither the City of Oak Harbor nor any agency, officer, or employee of the City
of Oak Harbor warrants the accuracy, reliability or timeliness of any information
contained on mapping products originating fiom the City of Oak Harbor and
shall not be held liable for any losses caused by such reliance on the accuracy,
reliability or timeliness of such information. Any person or entity who relies on
any information obtained fiom the systems, does so at his or her own risk.

PARKS, CHURCHES, AND SCHOOLS

Park

Church

Legend
CityLimits

UGA - City Adopted
(Not included in study area)

UGA - County Adopted

School



Land Use distributions for LTR and ILR for the variations in developable/undevelopable ratios

City UGA City UGA City UGA City UGA City UGA City UGA City UGA City UGA City UGA City UGA
Auto/Industrial Commercial 63 6 41 21 63 3 41 23 62 3 43 23 54 3 50 23 43 3 61 23
Central Business District 23 18 20 21 16 25 12 29 10 31
Community Commercial 98 53 56 5 61 42 93 16 43 40 111 18 28 39 126 19 23 35 131 23
High Density Residential 53 97 48 102 41 109 33 117 18 132
Highway Corridor Commercial 30 45 26 50 21 55 14 61 10 65
Industrial 9 113 11 36 9 98 11 50 9 98 11 50 6 78 15 70 4 78 16 70
Low Density Residential 261 157 856 270 178 135 938 292 155 133 961 295 141 117 976 310 128 113 988 314
Medium Density Residential 78 3 122 2 57 3 144 2 53 3 147 2 47 3 153 2 39 3 161 2
Medium-High Density Residential 71 13 71 13 69 15 30 54 2 82
Neighborhood Commercial 3 4 2 5 1 5 1 6 1 6
Open Space 16 37 201 19 16 36 201 19 16 36 201 19 16 26 201 29 7 26 210 29
Planned Business Park 70 50 10 5 70 49 10 6 70 44 10 10 70 44 10 10 70 44 10 10
Planned Industrial Park 50 155 14 107 50 146 14 117 50 127 14 135 50 120 14 142 50 106 14 157
Public Facilities 10 348 18 10 348 18 10 348 18 10 348 18 10 348 18
Residential Office 24 69 15 79 9 84 6 88 4 89
Residential Estate 25 45 17 53 16 54 15 55 6 65

859 599 1905 527 695 529 2070 597 625 501 2139 625 518 447 2246 679 419 415 2345 711
Developable Undevelopable Developable Undevelopable Developable Undevelopable Developable Undevelopable Developable Undevelopable

1459 2432 1224 2667 1126 2764 965 2926 834 3057
Total Area 3890 3890 3890 3890 3890

City UGA City UGA City UGA City UGA City UGA City UGA City UGA City UGA City UGA City UGA
Auto/Industrial Commercial 81 3 23 23 81 3 23 23 75 3 29 23 73 3 31 23 62 3 43 23
Central Business District 21 20 18 23 16 25 12 29 11 30
Community Commercial 54 42 100 16 44 40 110 18 35 40 119 18 28 40 126 18 23 40 131 18
High Density Residential 51 99 50 100 48 102 45 105 25 125
Highway Corridor Commercial 22 53 21 55 15 60 14 61 13 62
Industrial 6 112 14 36 6 112 14 36 2 112 18 36 2 103 18 45 2 91 18 57
Low Density Residential 164 120 952 307 159 120 957 307 154 106 962 321 145 106 972 321 129 106 987 321
Medium Density Residential 58 3 142 2 58 3 142 2 57 3 144 2 51 3 149 2 45 3 155 2
Medium-High Density Residential 72 12 70 14 70 14 67 17 50 34
Neighborhood Commercial 2 4 2 5 1 5 1 5 1 5
Open Space 24 46 193 10 24 46 193 10 24 46 193 10 24 36 193 20 22 36 196 20
Planned Business Park 80 48 7 80 48 7 80 48 7 80 44 80 44
Planned Industrial Park 51 166 12 97 51 166 12 97 51 166 12 97 51 159 12 10 51 146 12 10
Public Facilities 30 18 329 30 18 329 30 18 329 30 18 329 104 30 18 329 116
Residential Office 12 82 10 83 6 87 6 87 5 88
Residential Estate 16 54 16 54 16 54 15 55 15 55

728 574 2036 552 704 572 2061 554 666 558 2098 568 632 528 2133 598 549 503 2215 623
Developable Undevelopable Developable Undevelopable Developable Undevelopable Developable Undevelopable Developable Undevelopable

1302 2589 1276 2615 1224 2666 1159 2731 1052 2839
Total Area 3890 3890 3890 3890 3890

Developable Undevelopable
Land to Total Value Ratio > 50% Land to Total value Ratio > 60%

Developable Undevelopable
Land to Total Value Ratio > 90%

Developable Undevelopable
Land to Total Value Ratio > 70%

Developable Undevelopable
Land to Total Value Ratio > 80%

Developable Undevelopable

Developable
ILR Ratio > 50% ILR Ratio > 40% ILR Ratio > 30% ILR Ratio > 20%

Undevelopable
ILR Ratio > 10%

Developable Undevelopable Developable Undevelopable Developable Undevelopable Developable Undevelopable



ÜDisclaimer:
This map is created using assessed value data supplied by the Island County
Assessor's Office in November, 2009.  The map indicates preliminary
information based on the data and is subject to change based on further
research and other findings as the UGA capacity analysis progresses.

Neither the City of Oak Harbor nor any agency, officer, or employee of the City
of Oak Harbor warrants the accuracy, reliability or timeliness of any information
contained on mapping products originating fiom the City of Oak Harbor and
shall not be held liable for any losses caused by such reliance on the accuracy,
reliability or timeliness of such information. Any person or entity who relies on
any information obtained fiom the systems, does so at his or her own risk.

ALL PROPERTIES <10% ILR RATIO

Developability

Properties with 10%+ ILR Ratio

Properties with <10% ILR Ratio

Legend
CityLimits

UGA - City Adopted
(Not included in study area)

UGA - County Adopted



ÜDisclaimer:
This map is created using assessed value data supplied by the Island County
Assessor's Office in November, 2009.  The map indicates preliminary
information based on the data and is subject to change based on further
research and other findings as the UGA capacity analysis progresses.

Neither the City of Oak Harbor nor any agency, officer, or employee of the City
of Oak Harbor warrants the accuracy, reliability or timeliness of any information
contained on mapping products originating fiom the City of Oak Harbor and
shall not be held liable for any losses caused by such reliance on the accuracy,
reliability or timeliness of such information. Any person or entity who relies on
any information obtained fiom the systems, does so at his or her own risk.

ALL PROPERTIES <20% ILR RATIO

Developability

Properties with 20%+ ILR Ratio

Properties with <20% ILR Ratio

Legend
CityLimits

UGA - City Adopted
(Not included in study area)

UGA - County Adopted



ÜDisclaimer:
This map is created using assessed value data supplied by the Island County
Assessor's Office in November, 2009.  The map indicates preliminary
information based on the data and is subject to change based on further
research and other findings as the UGA capacity analysis progresses.

Neither the City of Oak Harbor nor any agency, officer, or employee of the City
of Oak Harbor warrants the accuracy, reliability or timeliness of any information
contained on mapping products originating fiom the City of Oak Harbor and
shall not be held liable for any losses caused by such reliance on the accuracy,
reliability or timeliness of such information. Any person or entity who relies on
any information obtained fiom the systems, does so at his or her own risk.

ALL PROPERTIES <30% ILR RATIO

Developability

Properties with 30%+ ILR Ratio

Properties with <30% ILR Ratio

Legend
CityLimits

UGA - City Adopted
(Not included in study area)

UGA - County Adopted



ÜDisclaimer:
This map is created using assessed value data supplied by the Island County
Assessor's Office in November, 2009.  The map indicates preliminary
information based on the data and is subject to change based on further
research and other findings as the UGA capacity analysis progresses.

Neither the City of Oak Harbor nor any agency, officer, or employee of the City
of Oak Harbor warrants the accuracy, reliability or timeliness of any information
contained on mapping products originating fiom the City of Oak Harbor and
shall not be held liable for any losses caused by such reliance on the accuracy,
reliability or timeliness of such information. Any person or entity who relies on
any information obtained fiom the systems, does so at his or her own risk.

ALL PROPERTIES <40% ILR RATIO

Developability

Properties with 40%+ ILR Ratio

Properties with <40% ILR Ratio

Legend
CityLimits

UGA - City Adopted
(Not included in study area)

UGA - County Adopted



ÜDisclaimer:
This map is created using assessed value data supplied by the Island County
Assessor's Office in November, 2009.  The map indicates preliminary
information based on the data and is subject to change based on further
research and other findings as the UGA capacity analysis progresses.

Neither the City of Oak Harbor nor any agency, officer, or employee of the City
of Oak Harbor warrants the accuracy, reliability or timeliness of any information
contained on mapping products originating fiom the City of Oak Harbor and
shall not be held liable for any losses caused by such reliance on the accuracy,
reliability or timeliness of such information. Any person or entity who relies on
any information obtained fiom the systems, does so at his or her own risk.

ALL PROPERTIES <50% ILR RATIO

Developability

Properties with 50%+ ILR Ratio

Properties with <50% ILR Ratio

Legend
CityLimits

UGA - City Adopted
(Not included in study area)

UGA - County Adopted



Ü
Disclaimer:
This map is created using assessed value data supplied by the Island County Assessor's Office in
November, 2009.  The map indicates preliminary information based on the data and is subject to
change based on further research and other findings as the UGA capacity analysis progresses.

Neither the City of Oak Harbor nor any agency, officer, or employee of the City of Oak Harbor warrants
the accuracy, reliability or timeliness of any information contained on mapping products originating
fiom the City of Oak Harbor and shall not be held liable for any losses caused by such reliance on the
accuracy, reliability or timeliness of such information. Any person or entity who relies on any
information obtained fiom the systems, does so at his or her own risk.

ALL PROPERTIES >50% LTR RATIO

Legend
CityLimits

Developability

UGA - City Adopted
(Not included in study area)

UGA - County Adopted

Properties with 50%+ Development Ratio

Properties with <50% Development Ratio



Ü

ALL PROPERTIES >60% LTR RATIO

Disclaimer:
This map is created using assessed value data supplied by the Island County Assessor's Office in
November, 2009.  The map indicates preliminary information based on the data and is subject to
change based on further research and other findings as the UGA capacity analysis progresses.

Neither the City of Oak Harbor nor any agency, officer, or employee of the City of Oak Harbor warrants
the accuracy, reliability or timeliness of any information contained on mapping products originating
fiom the City of Oak Harbor and shall not be held liable for any losses caused by such reliance on the
accuracy, reliability or timeliness of such information. Any person or entity who relies on any
information obtained fiom the systems, does so at his or her own risk.

Legend
CityLimits

Developability

UGA - City Adopted
(Not included in study area)

UGA - County Adopted

Properties with 60%+ Development Ratio

Properties with <60% Development Ratio



Ü

ALL PROPERTIES >70% LTR RATIO

Disclaimer:
This map is created using assessed value data supplied by the Island County Assessor's Office in
November, 2009.  The map indicates preliminary information based on the data and is subject to
change based on further research and other findings as the UGA capacity analysis progresses.

Neither the City of Oak Harbor nor any agency, officer, or employee of the City of Oak Harbor warrants
the accuracy, reliability or timeliness of any information contained on mapping products originating
fiom the City of Oak Harbor and shall not be held liable for any losses caused by such reliance on the
accuracy, reliability or timeliness of such information. Any person or entity who relies on any
information obtained fiom the systems, does so at his or her own risk.

Legend
CityLimits

Developability

UGA - City Adopted
(Not included in study area)

UGA - County Adopted

Properties with 70%+ Development Ratio

Properties with <70% Development Ratio



Ü

ALL PROPERTIES >80% LTR RATIO

Disclaimer:
This map is created using assessed value data supplied by the Island County Assessor's Office in
November, 2009.  The map indicates preliminary information based on the data and is subject to
change based on further research and other findings as the UGA capacity analysis progresses.

Neither the City of Oak Harbor nor any agency, officer, or employee of the City of Oak Harbor warrants
the accuracy, reliability or timeliness of any information contained on mapping products originating
fiom the City of Oak Harbor and shall not be held liable for any losses caused by such reliance on the
accuracy, reliability or timeliness of such information. Any person or entity who relies on any
information obtained fiom the systems, does so at his or her own risk.

Legend
CityLimits

Developability

UGA - City Adopted
(Not included in study area)

UGA - County Adopted

Properties with 80%+ Development Ratio

Properties with <80% Development Ratio



Ü

ALL PROPERTIES >90% LTR RATIO

Disclaimer:
This map is created using assessed value data supplied by the Island County Assessor's Office in
November, 2009.  The map indicates preliminary information based on the data and is subject to
change based on further research and other findings as the UGA capacity analysis progresses.

Neither the City of Oak Harbor nor any agency, officer, or employee of the City of Oak Harbor warrants
the accuracy, reliability or timeliness of any information contained on mapping products originating
fiom the City of Oak Harbor and shall not be held liable for any losses caused by such reliance on the
accuracy, reliability or timeliness of such information. Any person or entity who relies on any
information obtained fiom the systems, does so at his or her own risk.

Legend
CityLimits

Developability

UGA - City Adopted
(Not included in study area)

UGA - County Adopted

Properties with 90%+ Development Ratio

Properties with <90% Development Ratio


	Presentation May 25 PC complete packet.pdf
	Slide Number 1
	Slide Number 2
	Population Densities
	Slide Number 4
	Development Densities
	Methodologies
	Data Source
	Data Management
	Data Correction
	Density Ratio
	Density Ratio
	Improvement to Land Ratio
	Improvement to Land Ratio
	Land to Total Value Ratio
	Land to Total Value Ratio
	Improvement to Land Ratio
	ILR and LTR�Potentially developable acres
	Presentation May 25 PC.pdf
	Slide Number 1
	Slide Number 2
	Population Densities
	Slide Number 4
	Development Densities
	Methodologies
	Data Source
	Data Management
	Data Correction
	Density Ratio
	Density Ratio
	Improvement to Land Ratio
	Improvement to Land Ratio
	Land to Total Value Ratio
	Land to Total Value Ratio
	Improvement to Land Ratio
	ILR and LTR�Potentially developable acres





